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- UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT .~
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
- CASENO. 04-80862- CIV—MIDDLEBROOKS/JOHNSON

COMMODITY I'UTUR.ES TRADING

COMMISSION, -

’Plaintiff,,' o _ B

| - vy IS e

vs. . . . . : ‘ ‘
WILSHIRE INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT DEC_“ 2005
CORPORATION, NATIONAL COMMODITIES camnes’ wanoen
CORPORATION, INC., ANDREW ALAN LR
WILSHIRE, ERIC SCOTT MALCOLMSON and - "
JAMES JOSEPH RUSSO,

Defendants.

/
- . TRIAL ORDER

THIS CAUSE comes before the Court upon a Complamt [DE #1], filed on September
14, 2004. In the Complaint, Plaintiff, the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (“CFTC"),
" alleges that Defendants violated the Coﬁunodity Exchange Act (“CE‘A”).,. as amended, 7 U.S.C.
§§ 1 et seq., aiﬁd:al.:‘;)l:icable CFTC Regulations. Specifically, the CFTC _a!,l_eggs that Defendants

violated 17 C. FR. §33. lO(a) & (c) (2003) which makes it unlawful »
S s

"for any peIsOn d1rectly or indirectly: (a) To cheat or defraud or
S . " attempt to cheat or defraud any other person;”. . . (c) To deceive or
- ... . anempt to deceive any other person by any means whatsoever in or
© " 7. in connection with an offer 1o enter into, the entry into, the
‘confirmation of the execution of, or the mmntenance of, any

. commodlty option transaction.

. Jd .
| By allegedly violating the CFTC’s regulations on commodity transactions, the CFTC
maiﬁlajn;é t.‘h?'t. Defendants alsd violatec} 7 ﬁ.S,C. § 6;_(b) (2@0_2) \yhich vp‘r(vwi,des that

S i

Scunned Imugo « :04CVAALEY Doeumeir 1 97 page 1 Toa Boo 06 165514 2009

DEC @8 2085 11:4
‘ 9 s x{i';5618833419 PAGE. @2



12/08/05

11:44 FAX 15618033419 : s @oo03

R noperson shall offer to cnter into, enter into or confirm the e)tecution
. of, any transaction involving any commodity regulated under this
Act. . . contrary to any rule, regulation, or order of the Commission
prohibiting any such transaction or allowing any such transaction
‘under such terms and conditions as the Commission shall prescribe.
Id | o ”

.‘ _A.,fonr-day bench trtal in this matter was held from August 8-1 l,‘ ZQOS. During that time,
the Counheard argument by the partiee and testimony from multiple writnes'ses. The Court has
revietved the record, including the trial transcript, all evidence admitted} at trial, the parties’ post-
trial t;‘t‘lin‘g:e,'_‘and is othermse fully apprised in the premises, |
1. FINDINGS OF FACT

| _The enidence at trial consisted mostly of testimony by nine olients‘vof Wilshire Investment
Management Corporatlon (WIM), two auditors from the National Futures Association (NFA),
and Defendants Enc Scott Malcolmson (‘ Malcolmson”), James Joseph Russo (“Russo”) and
Andrew W1lshnfe (“thshn-c ). The most telhng aspcct of the tnal was_ the defendants’
testimony While itis understandably difﬁcult to confront te.étimony by several invesmrs about
events transpiring years before, the defendants’ tesnmony was snmply not credible. They
emphahcal ly clmmed that all the testxmony of the mvestors was false A.lthough several of the

mvestors had no prevnous expenence in tradmg commodities or opnons the brokers claimed that

these novices a]ways msxsted on makmg their own decxs:ons about t:ades and that many of the

‘losses occun-ed when the mvestors- dlsregarded their advice.

The Defendants would rarely answer a questxon directly. Rather than answer the question

asked, a defendant would prOV1dc a torrent of argon about “tradmg stratcg1es ” “systematic

” G

approééhes, cOmputer generated signals,” and “tcchnic‘al' ’nnalysis'.”'f; e
2 :
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' The défeﬁdants claimed to be unable to remember when they had last read their
deposit%ﬁh iegtimony, kwherrl méy rhad made changes in their written direct -festimony, or even
what ﬂ1§y> had said tﬁoméms bcfope. Yet the dcfendants insisted that not oihly was the investors’
testiinbpy uiitme, but that the defendants; accuratel}; remembered all of thé‘detailed
| convéréatio;;s rwith theﬁ clients. While the defendants adamant}y demed érqmising their clients e

high proﬁts,'suggésting that their other clients had been very successful, downplaying the risks of
commodlty trading, or using seasonal information to suggest profit pqt:gﬁal, the investors’
testin#onﬁ igox_;.si‘,s:,fc‘n;_tly, ihdicﬁted 6thefwise. _lndecd, the pattefn esfablished by the investors’
testimony, despite the defendants’ protestations, is undeniable.
| The Court must first determine what specific statements were ma&e to each investor by
Defendants Russo, Malcolmson, and Wilshire. Based on the trial testimony, the Court finds the
follow;'lﬁé:ﬁ SN e T T
oy '-I’ohy"'Del Du'éo" o
- MrDel Duco was iniﬁally c-ont'a'f.it'ed. by Jon Vaéta; aWIMaccount executive, who

| wﬁntcd him to ;opeﬁ an aécouht with WIM. Vasta told Mr. DelDuco that 1f he invested with

| Vasxa, he Grbuld."‘rﬁake r.n'onéy.’;' Vasta speciﬁ'callyv x'"eférenc’éd .th; 'ﬁpp¥oaching: cold winter and

| said; Bécéd;c of ihié,- hcatmg oil was 'go‘ing' to go “t'h'rdugh"t-k.ie roof‘and :Mr; Del Duco could take
' advé_xita’ﬁe of the' “sé‘aSbﬁaltswi.ng.” :Laiér, after 'losing rﬁbﬂeﬂ? on ﬁe mmal héating oil trades,

‘ Vastatold Mr. Del bﬁcd: that he .should"p'urcﬁése additional }:;ptibxiQ msoybeans Vasta promised
: tha'tl‘l\:ﬁr; Del Duco "Woi'xld “z{t the vei;y- least” break even on ﬁie soybean trade, and would most
likely rieéoﬁp'all his 1bs;és aﬁd ma'keisﬁhié mbnej; Mr Del 'Dﬁco also had several conversations

with Andrew Wilshire. During at least one conversation, Wilshire assured Mr. Del Duco that
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WIM’S‘btiher‘clicnts were making money and Mr. Del Duco would teo ‘i_f,he' ".“stuck it out.”
Wi}lshire also promised that if Mr. Del Duco stayed with WIM, the company would make Mr.
Del Ddco’s money back fof him. | |
b Dehiel lamee
Mr McNamee received a phone call from James Russo, an Assoclated Person (“AP™) of
WiM, aﬁer responding to an Internet “pop-up” ad for educational matenals on commodity
tradmg Russo mdxcated that he specialized ip options trading and that these options entailed
“little or no risk unless the trader was a complete moron.” Russo also 1nd1cated that options
trading had an infinite “upside” and that profits were almost “guaranteed." Furthermore, Russo
claimed that “all his clients” who closely follow his recorﬁmendaﬁons realize significant profits
in short periods of time. Over the course of several months, Russo con.stanﬂy called Mr.
‘;McNdmce, pressunng him to invest and suggestmg that optlons trddmg would fund both Mr.
McNamee s retirement and h15 chxldren s education “wnhm a few months " After Mr. McNamee
' opened an account at WIM 'he spoke with Andrew Wilshire, who assured him that Russo was
one of hts best traders Russo recommended i investing in Japanese Yen, assuring Mr. McNamee
that 1t was a “sure thmg“ and a “home run.” When tlns mvestment faﬂed in May 2002, Russo
encouraged McNamee to purchase crude oil opt:ons becausc Iraq was gomg to embargo oil sales
tothe US. o ! |
: ¢.Dennis Albrecht
‘_M'r.?AlgbreEh't recewed a call from Eric Malcolmson, another WIM AP, after contasting
 WIM on the Internet. “Malcomson said that he had just helped another client double or triple his

investment. Mr. Albrecht had no experience in trading commodities or options. In January
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2002, ba's;ad“on Mr Malcolmson’s advice, Mr, Albrecht in'(/esteel first $5,000 and later an
addmonal $15,000 in Japanese Yen. By March 2002, Mr. Albrecht had lost all but $23.94.
d Doreen Daxdone o |
Me Daldone recewed a phone call from Malcolmson in 2000 Malcolmson repcatedly
told her “I know I can make you money" and represented that he hadvbcen very successful
makmg ot_her clients rich thro‘ugh commodities trading. Malcolmson sﬁggested investing in
natural gas bccause as the winter wore on and grew colder people would use more gas for heat.
| He also told Ms Daidone not to worry about risk and commnauy emphasnzed profit potential.
After Ms. Daxdone 5 initial investment dxsappeared, and she indicated a vde,su'e to close her
accoﬁm, Malcolmson atate “I will make your money back.”
| e. Charles Bolam
Mr Bolam also dealt with Eric Malcolmson Malcolmson suggested that his experience
and gmdance would greatly reduce the nsk of opuons tradmg He encouraged Mr. Bolam to
invest 1mmed1ately because “time [was] critical” to take advantage of a record low in Japanese
Yen, Malcolmson said that M: Bolam could make a large retum unmedlately and insisted that
he would miss 2 great 0pponumty if he did not mvest zmmedxately. Malcolmson did not address
mschents’ losscs and only épeke al'aoﬁt'petenti'al éains.. e
"% Bruce Mclean |
" Malcolmson contacted Mr. MeLean in April 2001. Malcolmson clairned that WIM's
“gfeat’ reéeare}i:tea'm”:had produced a winning trade percehfage of 75‘5/;30%, and that
MaleOh;i'sen"s. own 'clieiits were makihg alot of moaey; Ih fact, Malcolmson told Mr. McLean

he could ekpéet to double his investment in a short period. After opening his account, Mr.
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McLeaﬁ i:laim;' .tha.t'Mal'colxﬁson purchased éeveral optioné withqut ﬁﬁthorizétvion, resulting in a
loss of @ost of the éccouﬁt. |
g. Duane Dipert v
N Mr Dipertv dealt with Russo and Michael Pucci, anoiher account exqcuﬁve at WIM. Mr.
Dipertinvested 7,000 in Septemmber 2001 based on Russo's reprosestation that he could make
S30,000 and “retire eaﬂy.” After losing that $7,000, Mr. Dipcﬂ' continued to invest with Pucci.
In June 2002, Pucci made si_:ﬁ_ unauthorized trades in Mr. Dipeﬁ’s aéc_:ouﬁt_ which eventually
wiped :out“er. Dipert’s account. | -
. George Tracy
Mr. Tracy had an account with Malcolmson. Malcolmson éﬁcouraged Mr. Tracy to add
more money to his account, stating that WIM clients had made ﬁ lot of money. Malcolmson
recoﬁifﬁéﬁde& purchasmg 'heaﬁngv 6{1 :op').t‘ions umnedlz‘nely, beforewmter amved in the northeast,
because pnces would go up in the winter.
“i John Steveps
* M. Stevens received & call from Malcolmson in SepternberZOOO Malcolmson described
| hxmsclf as“very Ex;cc&séf&l”'ahd desci;ii:ed' WIM as Ohe'ﬁf -thebmo"fstv successful trading firms.
Mﬂéﬁiﬁiﬁoﬂbléimed to hay:é a“prowien meﬁiod” for makmg i:ro:ﬁtabl'e trades, and that he could
"~ double ortnple Mr. Stevéns® investment in a short time. Malco]msonalso d;ifned to have
' nu-n:edv'$5,60(')énd ilO,be accounts into $100,000 accoﬁnts. While acknowledging that
comfﬁbdiﬁés tfa'ding' involved some risk, Malcolmson described his me!!hod as “fool-proof.”
) (Dc;spite tvlie.fréquént' statements to these niné customersmdlcanng that WIM clients made

fots of moneyand that WIM brokers had methods and expenence that limited the risk of trading

B R
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comrnodrtires;'the Qast majority of WIM clients lost morrey. In fact, frorrr September 2000
through September 2004, approxrmately 87% of WIM clients closed therr accounts with a loss.
See Pl. Ex. I 6 During this period, Malcolmson and Russo’s chents did even worse, losmg
money 88% and 89% of the time, respectively. Id. The largest gam any of Malcolmson ]
accou_ms closed with between 2000 and 2003 was $8,231.57, the largest garn by any of Russo’s
accounﬁs was $4,192,73. Pl Ex. 16, pp. 6, 9. Neither Malcolmson nor ﬁﬁsso nor any other WIM
representgtive ever disclosed the fxrm’_s track record or the individual AP’s.track record to their
clients. “..0 o Lo | C 7 ”

»Iln December 2003, Vilia Sutkus-Kiela and Matthew Pendell of the NFA met with
Andrew Wilshire in connection with an NFA audit of WIM. Ms. Sutkus-Kiela and Mr. Pendell
also conductcd an exit mtemew with ers}nre on March 15, 2004 before issuing their audit on
March 24 2004 They presented the audrt s conclusrons to Mr ershn'e 1nc1udmg concerns that

WIM s sales sohcrtatlons were mrsleadmg and hkely to decewc the pubhc

o A SR LV L SRR

(SR TN

I ANALYSIS OF LIABILITY
A MAI_,QJOLMSOE AND RU sso-. S S ' -'
‘ ':;lln;a srmrlar d(rforeerrrent ease-brbught by the CFTc; theEleventh Circuit noted that the
' CFTC must prove three elements to establish liability for fraud: (1) the making of a
) nﬁsrepresentaﬁon, misleading statement, or a deceptive omission; (2) scienter; and (3)
materiality.! Sée Commodity Futures Trading Comit’n v, Rji"ﬁzfégé}az'é & Co., 310F.3d 1321

AT A

1The Eleventh Circuit also explicitly noted that “unlike a cause of action for fraud under the common law of
Tonts, * rehzmcu on thc represenratxons is not a requisite element in an Lnforcemem action.RJ. Fitzgerald, 310 F.3d
atn.6.”
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( lth Clr2002), citing Hammond v. Smith Barney Harris Upham & Co., [1997-1990 Transfer
Binder] Comm Fut. L. Rep. (CCH) 24,617 (CFTC Mar.1, 1990); CFTC v. Trinity Finan. Group,
Inc., Comm Fut L. R.ep 27,179 (S.D. Fla. Sept. 29, 1997), aff'din relevant part by CFTC v.
Sidor, 178 F 3d 1132 (llth Crr 1999). .
Malung ofa Mtsrepresentatlon, Misleading Statement, or Deceptrve Omxssxon

| In R..l F xtzgerald, the Eteventh Circuit noted that “whether a mxsrepresenta‘aon has been
made depends‘ orx ‘the ‘overall message’ and the ‘common understanding of the information
conveyed.” R.J. ‘Fitzgerald, 310 F._Sd at 1328. That Court found liability for statements
overemphasizing profit potential and downplaying risk. These statements .ineluded telling
customers that “huge profits” of “200 to 300%™ and that customers needed act immediately
becausc the market might “never” present such an opportunity again Id at 1329. The Court also
noted that both thc Court and the CFTC had prewously condemned “lmkmg proﬁt expectations
on commodmes opnons to }snown and expected weather events seasonal trends a.nd historical
highs.” Id a1 1330. | |

Russo and Malcolmson made several mtsreprescntanons and mxsleadmg statements that

exaggeratcd proﬁt potenual and downplayed nsk sumlar to those condemned in R.J. Fitzgerald.
Russo told Daniel McNamee that his SuggeSted investxheﬁts had “inf'irrit'e‘dpside,” that profits
'were “almost guaranteed » and that mvestmg in Yen was a “sure thmg ” He even went so far as
to say that options tradmg entatled “itle or no nsk unless the tra.der was a complete moron.”
Russo told Duane Dlpcrt that he could make $30, 000 off of a $7 000 mvestment and “retire
early” o

EMaIcolmson told Denms Albrecht and John Stevens that hc had helped clients “double or

R N
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tnplc” thelr money and had turned §5,000 and $10 000 accounts into $100,000, even though 88%
of hxs cllents had lost money between 2000-2004 and the largest gain any of his clients had
expenenccd }vas approxtmately $8,000. He guaranteed Doreen Daldone and John Stevens that
he Qoulci rrllake‘them moné}. He also sugge_éted, to Charles Bolam, ‘Bruce; MeLean, and John
Stevens that his expeﬁence, research methods, and trading techniques ;;vouid lirait their risk, even
going eo' far as to call his method “fool-proof.” Finaﬂy, in direct contravention of previous Court
and CFTC rulings, Maleolm;on suggested to clients that they'cou]d make substantial profits by
relyihg on seasonal trends and historical prices. For example, he told Doreen Daidone and
Geerge Tracy that natural gas and heating oil options (respectively) would increase as winter
wore on. Just as the commercial in R.J. Fitzgerald told customers that they needed to act
mmed;ately to take advantage of a unique Opportumty for gains in the corn market, Malcolmson
' told Charles Bolam that “nme [was] crmcal” to take advamage of recard lows in Japanese Yen.

The Defcnda.nts argue that then: exuberant descnpnons of proﬁt potenual were balanced

by the nsk disclosure documents Lhai each customner sxgncd and by the fact that each customer
makes the ulumare decxs;on of whethcr or not 10 place a trade However the Eleventh Circuit
‘has conmstently held that general risk disclosure statements cannot balance out clearly
'mxsleadmg statements. See CFTC v. Stdan, 178 F.3d 1132, 1136 (1 1 Cu'.1999) (“We seriously

- do ubt \;Het.her boilerpléie risk diéelosme laﬂ'guage'ceulcvlb ever feﬁdet'eﬁ eaﬂier material

B mxsrepresentanon 1mmatcnal ™); Clayton Broicerage Co. of St Loux.s‘ v. CFT C, 194 F.2d 573,

' 580- 81 (l 1o er 1986) (“presentanon of the risk disclosure statement does not relieve a broker
df any ob'lli‘gation under the [Act] to disclose all material information about risk to customers.”);

JCC, Inc. v. CFTC, 63 F.3d 1557, 1569-70 (11* Cir. 1995). Nor can the defendants hide behind
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the mvesﬁﬁent“‘decxsnons of mostly novice investors led to behcve tbat fheir broker’s
recommendanons are fool-proof Such a ﬁndmg would fly in the face of the Actand its
1mplcm¢ntmg regulauons. . | |
In addiﬁon to making nﬁsrepresemations and misleéding Stateménts, Russo and
Mﬂw]ﬁsbn adniiuedly nevér disclose& that :88% and 83% of their cus’%of;x_ers, respectively, and
37% of »WIM’S cﬁstomer overall, lose money. R.J. Fitzgerald found that omitting such dismal
results (95% in that case), paz;ticula:lyi in conjunction with exéggcfated ﬁtqtements of profit
poter{tial:_,‘ made the solicitations fraudulent as a matter of law.r 301 F.3d at 1332-33. The Court
sta;cd that it is “misleading and deceptive to speak of ‘limited risk’ énd ‘i00-300' percent profits
without also telling the reasonable listener that the overwhelming bulk of firm customers lose
money ” Id. al 1333 (cltauons omitted). Defendants here argue that more than 50% of all
commodities tradcs by necessu-y, end i ina loss However the RJ. F xrzgerald Court specifically
| indiéifed that it is not h'o»i.r well dp'ai’tici.\la:‘ﬂrm has faréd in éozr'ip'aﬁs:dn"io other that matters;
rather 'ﬂier proper focus is on what 2 reasonable investor would want to know before investing.
Id Thcrefore Malcolmson and Russa’s faxlure to disclose their firm’s poor tradmg record
' constxtutes a deocptwc omxssxon‘ o
s 2. Scxenter
o For federal securitics fraud, scienter includes both intent to deceive and “severe
re‘cme;s;;ess:f ‘Bryant v. Avado Brands, Inc, 187 E.3d 1271, 1282 (11% Cir. 1999). This
requlrement can be met “when Defhndant’s conduét i'nvolvlés“hi.ghlyY u;féasonable omissions or
nusrepresemauons that present a danger of mxsleadmg [customers] Wthh is exther known to the

‘ De,fendant or so obeous that Defendant must t_lavc been aware of i R.J. Firzgerald, 310F.3d
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at 1328i‘v(c;u0ti‘r.xg Ziemba v. Cascade Int'l, Inc., 2v56 F3d1 194, 1202 (11" Cir. 2001)). In RJ.

, Firzger_ald, ﬂie Court found»the defendants, who were fcderally _xcgi;tered p_rofcssionals
lmowlédg;a_bie of the cémmodities maxkéts, were reckless in linking prpﬂt”expectations to
seasonﬂ &cndé, suggésting :lhat the market could be timed to generate hrgc profits, and inflating
profit expectations while downplaying sisks. |

| Agaiﬁ, Malcolmson ar_xd Russo’s actions are closely analogous to the unacceptable
behavio; "m RJ. Fitzger‘aldv. As dcs;ribeq above, they similarly made the type of statements
listed m RJ. Ez‘tzgerald and consistently condemned by the Eleventh Circuit and the CFTC.
Some of the statements chronicled earlier are so outrageous that Malcolmson and Russo must
have known they were misleading their customers, or, at the very least, that there was a high
probability of harm. Malcolmson and Russo are federally registemd pr_@)fessionals and profess to
bé Idiéﬁriedéeaﬁle iﬁ commodifiés u-admg anci fémili& thh thelrmdustry’s s.,ollicitation

| requuements In hght of r.hxs cxpcncnce and knowledge vmually guara.mcemg profns making

recommendatxons based on scasonal trends ‘and mxsreprescnnng thelr- past success records

- constitistes an extreme departure from the standards of ordmary care.

3 Materliy
CA fépiés'émétio'n or omission js “material” if a réason'ablc investor would consider it
1mporta.nt in decxdmg whiether to make an investment. R.J. F itzg:e:i'ala 301 F.3d at 1328-29
(cxtmg Aﬁ" liated Ute szens of Utah v. Umted States 406 US. 128 153 54 (1972); REW
Technical Servs,, Lid. v. CFIC, 205 F. 3d 164, 169 (5* Cir. 2000)).
One cannot senously dxspute that the mlsrepresentauons and omlssnons Malcolmson and

' Russo made are matenal Exaggerated statements of proﬁt potentlal and suggestxons that current

O L
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condiﬁons é).»f‘.ferk t:xnique opﬁbmmiﬁes t0 pfoﬁt would undoubtedly hea\)iiy inﬂucnce areasonable
investor’s decision to invest. R.J. Fitzgerald, 301 F.3d at 1330; In re JCC, Iﬁc., [1992-1994
Transfer.B‘inder] Comm. Fut. L. Rep. (CCH) 26,080 (CFTC May 12, 1994), aff’d, JCC, Inc. v.
CFIC, 63 F. 3d 1557 (am Cir. 1995). Therefore Malcolmson and Russo have clearly violated 7
USC §6c(b)and 17C.F.R §33.10.
B. WILLSHIRE Ists IMENT MANAG EMEET CORPORATION
| WIM is- vxcanously hable for the violations of its employees Unda Section 2(a)(1)(B) of
the CEA, 7U5.C. §2()(1)®)
~ [tIhe act, omission, or failure of any official, agent, or other persoﬁ acting for

any individual, association, partnership, corporation, or trust within the scope

of his employment or office shall be deemed the act, omission, or failure of

such individual, association, partnership, corporation, or trust, as well as of

- such official agent, or other pcrson
Ma.lcolmson and Russo made their fraudulent solxcltatmns w1thm the scopc of theu employment
‘with WIM As descnbcd in lhe ﬁ.ndmgs of fact at least one other W’IM AP, Jon Vasta, made
‘similar fraudulent mxsrepresentanons to chents in the scope of hxs employment The Defendants
do ot dispuie that WIM is lizble for these individuals® acts, other than to dispute the finding of
an underlymg vmlanon As the Court has found that WIM's employees have violated the Act,
WIM is similarly liable. | R
C. ANDREW WILSHIRE
_\ ’ Thé CFTC seeks to hold Andrew Wilshire personally liable as “controlling person.”

Under Sectioh 13(b) of the CEA, 7 ’U’S C. §13c(bj RO

. Any person who ducctly or mdlrectly, controls nny person who has violated
. __any provision of this chapier or any rules, regulations, or orders issued pursuant
"to this chapter may be held liable for such violation in any action brought by
~ the Commission to the same extent as the controlled person. In such action,

B
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". the éonimrssxon has the burden of proving that the controllirlg person did not
act in good faith or knowingly induced, directly or indirectly, the act or acts
consm-utmg violation..
The CFTC also asserts that Wilshire violated 17 C.F.R. §l66 3 by failing to “dxhgenﬂy
supemse" his APs The parties do not drspute that Andrew Wx)shrre qualrﬁes as a controlling
person. He is Presmlent and CEQ of WIM, hires new APs and brokers, supervises training,
monitors sohcltanons and is responsible for ensuring comphance thh the CFTC’s rules and
rcgulanons However, the parties do dispute whether ershrre acted in good faith or knowingly
mduced v1olauons of the CEA and whether he diligently supervised his subordmates
To show knowing inducement of conduct violating the CEA, the CFTC must “show that
the controlling person had actual or constructive knowledge of the core activities that constitute
tbe violation and allowed thcm to continue.” JCC, 63 F.3d at 1568; In re Spiegel, [1987-1990
Transfer Bmdcr] Comm Fut L. Rep. (CCH) 124,103, at 34, 767 (CFTC Jan 12 ]988) To
demonstrate constructive knowledge the CFTC must show that Wilshire “lack[ed] actual
) knowlodge ouly becausc he conscmusly avo1d[ed] 1t.” JCC 63 F 3d at 1569 In re Spiegel,
| [1987-1990 Transfer Binder] 124,103 at 34, 767. | -
l In JCC, the Elevemh Circuit upheld a ﬁndmg of knowmg "i"r.idueeﬁr.ent where the
' defendeﬁt-irras eetively ir'xvolved in :tr'airring and moniioririg sales persoha'i,' personally hired many
" of the APs monitored sales solicitation efforts, and prepered 'sarlee éeﬁpisi Therc was also
' evidence that several employees had reported illegal maxketmg behavxor to the defendant and that
the defendant $ onty response was to fire one offender elght momhs laler
Although not rdenucal, the facts jn this case are very sumlar t0 JCC. Wilshire was

admittedly responeibie for hiring, training, and monitoring WIM’s APs. His post-trial brief even

I3
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argués thathe ukcs an “ac.ti\"e fole” in ensuring his APs’ compliance With_NFA and CFTC rules.
He ‘nad nofice at least, of Jon Vasta’s and Eric Malcolmson’s violétions through speaking with
Tony Dcl Duco and John Stevens. Yet, hc punished veither M.r Vasta nor M.r Malcolmson.
Furthermore Wilshire tumself indicated that he does not accurately mform hxs customers of his
firm’s loss rate, implying that other WIM APs’ failure to disclose such mformauon was
condoned if not expressly encoumged Finally, the extent and obwousness of the soliciting
v:olauons.found_by the Court sunply belie any argument that Wilshire did not know what was
accurting. - Given Wilshire's own assertions about how extensively he moﬁitors his brokers, he
must ha;re either known what their tactics were or, at the very least, been willfully blind. These
facts indicate that Wilshire is liable not only as a “controlling person,” but also for failure to
diligenﬂy sqpchiSe.

' D. NATIONAL COMMODITIES CORFORATION, INC. (NCCD)

“The CFTC secks to hold National Commodities Corporation, Inc. (NCCI) lisble for

WlM’s ﬁéléﬁ& of the CEA“base.d ona Gﬁ’aranteetAgreemér‘lt beiv)ééﬁ NCCI and WIM. In

~ September 2000 NCCI and Wilshire entered intoa Guaramee Agreument In pertinent part, the

Guarantee Agreement states

S [NCCI] guarantees performance by [WIM] of, and shall be Jomtly and
... severally liable for, all obligations of the introducing broker under the

" Commoditics Exchange Act, as it may be amended from time to time, and the
.. rules, regulations and orders which bave been or may be promulgated

* thereunder with respect to the solicitation of and transactions involving all

* commodity customer, option customer, foreign futures customer and foreign

" options customer accounts of [WIM] entered into on or after the effective date

. of this agreement.

PL ex. 13. While the Defendants do not dispute the existence of this agreement or the language

- contained therein, they argue that NCCI did not agree to accept résponéibility for intentional or

»anw,lllmq lmﬂﬂﬂuumnlﬂpwoidf n-unmﬁ:uua: L
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wiflful ﬁusconduct. However, the Defendants do not point to any additional language in the
agreeu'tcut, any extemal evidence, or apy pﬁneiule of lawto suppoxft its eomention that the -
agreement does not cover willful or mtcntlonal misconduct. | N

The agreement clearly indicates that NCCI is “jointly and severally liable forall
obIrgatzons of [WIM] under the Commodities Exchange Act...” (emphasxs added). Nothing in
the agreement suggests any distinction between willful violations of WIM’s obligations versus
merely neghgcnt v101at10ns The Defendants gwe no reason why the plaxn meaning is incorrect
other'than their conclusory statement that the agreement dxd not apply 1o willful acts. Therefore,

NCCl is jointly and severally liable for WIM’s violations.

III. REMEDIES
AUUNCTION
| “The CFTC asks this Court to enter an 'injum:liou agamst the Defendants prohibiting
future vxolatxons of the CEA and bamng them from cngagmg in any conunoduy-related activity,
mcludmg sohcmng customers and funds In dctenmnmg whether an mjuncnon is appropriate,
the Court should constder past lllegal conduct and the hkehhood of future vxolauons See, e.g.
Sidofi, 178 F3dat 1137~ o
*Anl injunction is approptiate in this case. As detailed above, the Defendants violated the
" CEA it dealing with at least nine customess. The violations inchaded acts by multiple brokers at
' mul;iule tunes More imueﬁendy, wﬂh respect to the potenﬁal for future violations, the
Defendants have not acknowledged any wrongdoing, insisting rather that their sales tactics were

: corr;ul etay Tiegiﬁmatc. I_n fact, the lack of candor which they demonstrated at trial belies any

T oy
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intent ef meking good faith efforts to comply with restrictions ip the future

Defeﬁdants Malcolmson, Russo, Wilshire, and WIM are speciﬁcally enjoined from
violating section 4c(b) of the CEA (7U.S.C. §6¢c(b))and 17 CF.R. §3‘3.10(‘a)-(c). However,
because 1_he ﬁolations were‘blatant, braéen, and repeated, a more extensi\fe injunction is justified.
See CFTC v: Noble Wealth bam Information Svcs., Inc., 90 F.Supp.2d 676 (D. Md. 2000).
Therefore Defendants Maleolmson Russo, leshxre and WIM are further enjomed from
engagmg in any commod:ty—related activity, mcludmg sohextmg new customers

B. RESTITU roN

. The CFTC seeks restitution to compensate the customers defrauded by the Defendants.
“The Ceurt has authority to order restitution under the “ancillary relief” provision in 7 U.S.C.
§13a-1. CFTi C v. Co Petro Markenng Group, Inc., 680 F.2d 573, 583-584 (9 Cir. 1984); CFTC
v, Mtdland Rare Cozn Exchange Inc. 71 F Supp Zd 1257 1264 (S D Fla. 1999).
The CFTC seeks resntuuon for a!l customer losses from 2000 through September 2004, a
" tofal of over $6 mxlhon Thc Defendants ob_]ect that the CFT C has only presented evidence of
" fraudulent conduct with regards to nine customers and that the Court cannot presume, based on
these few customers,that all WIM customers lost their iﬁohey dite to fraudulent solicitations,
TheCFTC argues tha-t.relia;lce can Be preeemed, eithef béc'sﬁse all WIM solicitations omitted
* disclosute of WIM’s track record or because Malcolmson and Russo’s solicitations are so similar
- and 'cehsieient;that they amount 1o “systematic and pervasiv_e fraud.”
“The Ceﬁﬁ cannot infer, based on the evidence preser;ted; ihat'elver;' WIM customer was
har.fned by a ﬁaudhleﬂt eolicifaﬁoﬁ. ‘Pir'et,' this case is :net. "“pr‘ir.ria{ﬁi)"”wé,'n.omissions case in which

' the Counrt can presume reliance. See Affiliated Ute Citizens v. United States, 406 U.S. 128

16°
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(19725;.. Wacgrs v. bl Preciaus Merals Cbrp, 172 F.R.D. 479, 485 (S.b. Fla 1996). While the
Defendants’ faifure to disclqser’M’s investment track record is certainly»_va significant part of
the Court’s fraud -fmding, the. afﬁmaau'vc vmisrepresentations thc Defendants made regarding
profit potential, risk, and seasonal trends make this at least a mixed case of misrepresentation and
omission_. Sec In re Amerifirst Securities Litigation, 139 F.R.D. 423, 430-1:.4 (S.D. Fla. 1991);
Kreuzfeld A.G. v, Carnehammar, 138 F.R.D. 594 (S.D. Fla. 1991).
g Second, the evidence presented at trial was not sufficient to find that the wrongdoing was

. 50 systemahc Aﬁd jacﬁasive in WIM that cvery customer was harmed by fraudulent solicitation.

. Thc'CFT C u'i_es to analogize to other non-class action cases where the Court has presumed
pe_:rvasiye ﬂaud based onv the testimony of a handful of customers. However, in these cases, the

_ fraudulent acts were, by their nature, more certainly a part of every transaction. InCFTC v.
Noble Weallh the evxdence mdxcated that Noble Wealth conducted all of thexr trades outside the

B mterbank market where it was supposed to place orders 90 F Supp 2d 676 (D Md. 2000). In

; 'F TCv. F zggze el Inc the ﬁndmg of fraudulent m1srepresenmnon and omission was based on
standardxzed salcs presentauons and company produced promouonal matenals 994 F.2d 595 (9*
Cir. 1993). Here, the tesnmony presented pnmanly concemed two brokers. ‘While the
'cusfdccecc' testimony here did exhibit certain 'com'mohaliti.eé' among Russo and Malcolmson’s
fraudideni iéccics, there is little indication like in Noble .W'ea‘llh'or—' angze that similar tactics were

' necessarily a part of each WIM solicitation.?

2In addition to the nine teshfymg customers, the CFTC entered into evxdcnce an audit report by the NFA
which recounted complaints from other WIM customers. These complaints indicated additional misreprosentations
by Russo and Malcolmson and similar mistepresentations by other WIM APs not named in this suit. However, the
- summarics of statements by WIM customers in the NFA report are inadmissible hearsay.. The audit itself is hearsay,
which the CFTC argued is admissible under three possible exceptions: the “public records™ exception, the “business
. records” exception, and the “residual exception.” Under the business records and residual exceptions, the statements
recounted in the audit report would still constitute hearsay wuhm hearsay. '

' 17-
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| »:lRa‘ﬂ;erb, tlns case is much eloser to CFTC v, Matrix Trading Greup, Iﬁc, 2002 WL
31936799 (S.D. Fia. Oct. 3. 2002). In Matrix, the CFTC presented testimc‘my from. several
defrauded customers who indicated common mlsreptesentatxons in sales solicitations. Indeed,
the Matr:x mlsrepresemauons were v1rtua.lly identical to those presemed in thxs case. InMatrix,
the CFTC only requested, and the Court only granted, restitution for the sixteen customers who
tesnﬁed at tnal Jd at *13-14. A similar reredy is appropnatc here. |
Restxtuuon should be awarded to each of the following 1nchv1ch.1als3 in the following
amounts, representmg their total Josses*:
1) Tony Del Duco: $88,103.17
2 Georée Tracy: $14,546.35
3)  John Stevens: $£4,988.11
") " Doreen Diidone: $4,559.89
') Bruce MoLean: $2,929.57
""'6)" " Charles Bolam: $4,905.00

"7} Dennis Albrecht: $19,976.06

The pubtlic records exceptxon, Fed.R.Evid. 803(8) docs allow factual findings within government reports 1o
be admitted. However, even assuming the NFA is a public agency under Fed.R.Evid. 803(8), the report does not
present factual findings. Rather it simply recounts statements by WIM customers. Rule 803(8) only covers
information based on the knowledge or observations of the writer. Miller v. Field, 35 F.3d 1088, 1091 (6* Cir,

*.1994). Placing otherwise madmissible hearsay statements by third-parties into a government report does not make
the statetnents admissible. ULS. v. Pazsint, 703 £.2d 420, 424 (9" Cir. 1983); Parsons v. Honeywell, Inc. 929 F.2d
901, 907 (2d Cir. 1991). Therefore, the Court cannot consider the customer statements in the audit report for the
truth of their contents and cannot use those statements as additional evidence of pervasive fraud.

" ’Duane Dipert entered into & settlement agreement with WIM, Wilshire, Russo, Michael Pucci, and NCCI
in December 2002, Under this agrecment, Mr. Dipert received $7,000.00 and agreed 10 relcase the other parties
from any claims, Although the Plainti{’s cvidence indicates that Mr. Dipert lost $9 ,908.22, the Court must respect
this private agrecment and consider Mr. Dipert adequately compensated.

These ﬁgures are taken from PlaintifP's Exhibit 16 and the testimony of Lacey Dingman

23
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'8) - Daniel McNames: $7, 883.84
C.CviL Bn_mmigs o |
 The CFTC slso asks the Cowt to impose civil penalties on the Defendants. The Court
has authorify to impose “‘on any person found in the action to bave comm..itted any violation a
civil penalty in the amount of not more than the higher of $100,000 or uiﬁlc the monetary gain to
the per;son for each violation.._“ 7 US.C. §13a-1(d)()). As withits résti_tup'on argument, the
CFTC ufges the Count t§ base the civil penalties based on the Defcndants; fotal earnings from all
customers from 2000-2004. However, tﬁe statute specifically ties the t‘;iiiil bcnalty to specific
violations. As articulated above, the Court cannot presume violations beyond those on which it
heard evidence.
The Plaint.iffs presented some evidence regarding the amount of commissions and fees
paid by each 6fthe't,esﬁf}viihg.cust-omér‘s.‘ The testifying custorners apparently paid approximately
| 553,29136 in éénunissions and fees. However, it is difficult to discemn how particular
co@iéﬁéﬂé Qere dividéd dmongst thz. défcnda.nts. Tn ansr e\‘rex.xt.,ril does tn':o't éppear that triple
the Bénéﬁt from the festifying custormers to any individual défcndm eic;ée&ed $100,000.
" "The violations in this case wers blatant. Asnoted above, the Defendants are unapologetic
and br_éieﬁ and disp}éj' little inténtidn of changing. "Iherefbte, 'i'rripo'sirig: the maxiroum fine
: allowcd is ju’sﬁ:ﬁcdi Malcolmson, Russo, Wilshire, and WIM will be fined $100,000 each.
" The CFTC also seeks a séparaté fine against NCCI based on their contract with WIM,
However, as the CFTC itself points oit, NCCLis not liable for any of its own conduct; NCCI is
on.lif ih‘vc;l\:/.ed because of the contract making it “jointly and severally liable for, all obligations of

the introducing broker {WIM] under the Comumodities Exchange Act.”™ It is inappropriate to
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impose a écﬁmaté fine on NCCI. Rather, NCCl is jointly and severablf liai)le for WIM’s fine.
D, DISGORGEMENT
- Finally, the CFTC sceks disgorgement of all the Defedants’ ill-goﬁen gains.
Disgoréénent is a valid remedy for CEA violations. See, e.g., CFI‘C v. British American
opzion_;- Corp, 788 F.2d 92, 93-94 (2d Cir. 1986). However, the civil penalty imposed above is
sufﬁ;ieﬁt to ensure ﬁat the Defendants did not profit from defrauding the testifying customers.
An é.dditional order for disgorgement is not necessary.
o ORDER
Inlight of the foregoing, it is ORDERED AND ADJUDGED tha:
1.) Defendants® Motion to Exclude Plaintiff’s Claim for Restitution [DE #44] is DENIED;
2.) Plaintiff’s Motion to Exclude Certain of Defendants’ Trial Exhxbxts |DE #45] is GRANTED;
3) Dcfendams chuests for Heanng on Motxons in anme (DE #49 & #51] are DENJED AS
N MOOT o |
4.) The relxef of i uﬁuﬁctxon rcstnuuon, and cml penalty requested in Ihe Plamuff’s Complaint is
GRANTED as outlmed above ‘ | | |

' DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at Wcst Palm Beach Flonda this 2 day of
December, 2005. . : o S :

Tor o I DONALD M: MIDDLEBROOKS
UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

| CL All Counsel of Record
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